Buckinghamshire & Milton Keynes Fire Authority



Minutes of the Meeting of the OVERVIEW AND AUDIT COMMITTEE of the BUCKINGHAMSHIRE AND MILTON KEYNES FIRE AUTHORITY held on WEDNESDAY 16 MARCH 2022 at 10.00 AM.

Present: Councillors Bagge, Carroll, Chapple OBE, Darlington, Exon, Hussain, Rankine,

Stuchbury and Waite

Officers: M Osborne (Deputy Chief Fire Officer), G Britten (Director of Legal and

Governance), A Hussain (Deputy Director of Finance and Assets), M Hussey (Principal Accountant), S Tuffley (Head of Covid-19 Preparedness and Response),

S Wells (Head of Prevention, Response and Resilience), A Carter (Head of Technology, Transformation and PMO), K Nellist (Democratic Services Officer)

Remotely: S Harlock (Internal Audit Manager, Buckinghamshire Council), A Prestige (Internal Audit, Buckinghamshire Council), N Harris (External Auditor

Ernst & Young), A Kennett (Assistant Manager Ernst & Young)

Apologies: None.

The Director of Legal and Governance welcomed Members to the Overview and Audit Committee Meeting of the Buckinghamshire & Milton Keynes Fire Authority and advised that although members of the public were allowed to attend and observe in limited numbers, the meeting was being recorded and a copy would be uploaded onto the Authority's YouTube channel. Some of the presenters were contributing to the meeting remotely, Neil Harris and Alison Kennet from Ernst & Young and Selina Harlock and Alex Prestige from Internal Audit. To facilitate a diary clash of Neil Harris, the Chairman had agreed to take items 8, 9, and 10 before the Internal Audit Reports.

The Director of Legal and Governance advised Members that they would also be aware that, on the basis of legal advice received, the internal audit report on the Blue Light Hub - Post Project Evaluation would need to be considered in exempt session. The Chairman had therefore agreed with the internal auditors that this report would be taken as the last item of business.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCWmIXPWAscxpL3vliv7bh1Q

OA36 MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Audit Committee held on Wednesday 10 November 2021, be approved, and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

OA37 MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

In respect of Minute OA23 – the Deputy Director of Finance and Assets advised that at the last meeting, Members had requested an information sheet regarding the asset management system Red Kite. The Director of Finance and Assets had been planning to present it today, on the basis that the Red Kite audit would have been completed. The field work had been finished, but the report was still to be finalised, so it was requested that this action be reviewed at the next meeting.

In respect of Minute OA27 – the Director of Legal and Governance advised that a question had been asked at the last meeting regarding whether the spike in complaints had been attributed to the Covid lockdown. A response had been sent to Members on 16 December 2021. There were only two complaints that appeared to be directly attributable to Covid-19 and these were two allegations against individual employees for alleged breaches of Covid regulations, in their personal capacity, neither were found to have any grounds whatsoever.

OA38 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no disclosures of interest.

OA39 RIPA POLICY (MINUTE OA39 – 090316)

The Director of Legal and Governance advised Members that the Authority was the enforcing authority under the Regulation Investigatory Powers Act 2000 and confirmed that in the last reporting period no convert surveillance had been undertaken.

RESOLVED -

To note that there had been no covert surveillance conducted by officers since the last meeting of the Committee.

OA40 AUDIT RESULTS REPORT

The External Auditor advised Members that they were now in the final logistics of concluding the audit, subject to Member's considerations of the final set of accounts today. The External Auditor would be in a position, once he had received the final signed accounts and the signed letter of management representation, to issue the audit report, and the audit report would be an unqualified opinion on the Authority's financial statements.

The External Auditor also advised Members that he had not identified any significant weaknesses, in the arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Within three months of issuing the audit report, the Authority would receive an annual audit report which would summarise its understanding of the Authority's arrangements across the three criteria set by the National Audit Office. As part of looking at the Authority's value for money arrangements, External Audit had looked at financial resilience, the current budget, the medium term financial plan and strategy, the final position of the project for the Blue Light Hub, how the Authority had responded to the Inspectorates findings and recommendations, and taking all of those matters into account, there had been no significant weaknesses identified. The External Auditor was pleased with the way the Authority's Finance team had responded to the audit process, by quality of work, explanations, and responsiveness to audit queries.

The External Auditor advised Members that he was anticipating issuing the audit report on Monday 21 March 2022.

RESOLVED -

That the content of the report be noted.

OA41 LETTER OF MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION 2020/21

The Principal Accountant presented Members with an updated Letter of Management Representation for the financial year 2020-21 which captured an amendment made since the reports for this meeting were produced. This amendment was within Section A 5, which required a reason for not adjusting the identified audit differences. The reason for not making the adjustments was due to the values presented being immaterial to the account as a whole. Furthermore, an Internal Audit on Core Financial Controls was carried out annually which audits the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls. The consistent substantive audit rating gave confidence and reassurance that the systems of controls in place to manage and mitigate financial and non-financial risks to the system did not warrant adjusting the immaterial differences identified by the Auditors. These differences can be seen within the Audit Results report.

The Letter of Management Representation was a legislative requirement and a self-explanatory report. Information contained within this letter contributes towards the auditors being able to form their final opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Authority's financial position. This letter would be signed off by the Director of Finance & Assets and the Chairman of the Overview and Audit Committee following the meeting.

Resolved -

That the Letter of Representation be approved for signature by the Chief Finance Officer and the Chairman of the Overview and Audit Committee.

OA42 ADOPTION OF THE AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS – YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The Principal Accountant presented to Members the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021. These show the financial detail of the services the Authority had provided, together with explanatory notes, the resources consumed and the financial position at the end of the year compared with the previous year. When putting together the Accounts, the Authority had followed the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2020/21: Based on IFRS, the Code. The Accounts were drawn up in accordance with the accounting policies which were set out in detail within the Statement of Accounting Policies section.

The responsibility for the proper administration of the Authority's financial affairs was vested in the Director of Finance and Assets who was required by law to confirm that the Authority's system of internal controls could be relied upon to produce an accurate Statement of Accounts. The Accounts contain four main statements. Each of the four main statements were supported by disclosure notes providing additional detail to figures presented. The four main statements were; Movement in Reserves Statement - this statement showed the changes in the financial resources over the year; Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this statement showed the gains and losses that contributed towards the changes in resources shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement; Balance Sheet - this statement showed how the resources available were held in the form

of assets and liabilities and the Cash Flow Statement - this statement showed how the movement in resources had been reflected in cash flows.

The Principal Accountant advised Members that the Accounts also contained information regarding the Firefighters' Pension Fund Account. Along with a Narrative Statement which provided information about the Authority including Key Facts about the Authority, Financial Performance in 2020/21, Corporate Risks, the Pandemic, and a Going Concern Review. The auditor's report would be added to the document before publication.

The Principal Accountant advised Members that there was a 16 percent decrease in the total of non-current assets, the reason for the reduction was Bletchley Fire Station being sold during the financial year, which included an investment property on this site, and reporting Great Holm Fire Station as an asset held for sale, which was not shown separately in the Accounts due to details surrounding the sale being commercially sensitive. Assets under construction related to the build of the Blue Light Hub that was completed during 2020/21 and following an independent valuation, the value of the property was now seen within Land and Buildings. The valuation of all other property had fallen slightly following the independent valuations and the market position at the time.

The Principal Accountant advised Members that there was a 22 percent decrease overall in the current liabilities compared to the previous year. The main reason for the difference was a decrease seen in short term creditors on business rates relief grant seen in 2019-20, but not 2020-21 and more noticeably a large decrease in provisions of £1.08m, which included a reduction in the NNDR appeals provision and fully utilising the injury pensions provision.

The Principal Accountant advised that non-current / long term liabilities had increase by 25 percent in the long-term liabilities compared to the previous year. The majority of this increase was due to the liability relating to the defined benefit pension scheme. There was a change to the financial assumptions used by the Actuary, which included a significant change on the 'discount rate' Inflation expectations, which resulted in a higher value being placed on the defined benefit obligation. This increase was offset by the pension reserve. Usable Reserves had increase by 27 percent and the Unusable Reserves had increased by 34 percent.

A Member asked how much of the reserves had been used to fund day-to-day activity.

The Deputy Director of Finance and Assets responded by saying that in terms of the day-to-day activity for this coming year, the Authority had set aside £1.1m use of reserves to balance the budget for 2021/22. In reality, the Authority would not be using it, as there had been some underspend within existing budgets, additional government funding and additional funding from a rate review that had been carried out. Setting the budget for next year, a balanced budget had been set without the use of reserves from the revenue expenditure. In terms of the capital expenditure, the Authority does not receive any capital funding from government, so the Authority allocates revenue budget to transfer in the region of £1.4-£1.9m to fund capital projects.

A Member asked with regard to Human Resources why the amount had dropped by £96k, was it a recruitment issue, or were there less people than at the beginning of the year.

The Deputy Director of Finance and Assets confirmed that the budget for Human Resources was £542k and the Authority spent £446k, so there was an underspend of £96k. This was due to some vacancies within Human Resources. The Deputy Director of Finance and Assets confirmed that the vacancies had now been filled and Human Resources was back to full establishment.

Resolved -

- 1. That the matters raised by the external auditors be considered.
- 2. That the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 be approved for signing by the Chairman of the Overview and Audit Committee.

OA43 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - FINAL AUDIT REPORTS

The Internal Audit Manager advised that the purpose of this paper was to update Members on the progress of the annual Internal Audit Plan since the last meeting. Work had progressed according to the 2021/22 plan, and regular discussions had been held with the Director of Finance and Assets to monitor progress. The following 2021/22 internal audits have been finalised: Core Financial Controls (Substantial Opinion), HR People Management (Reasonable Opinion), Procurement Governance and Compliance (Reasonable Opinion), Portfolio Management Office Assurance (Reasonable Opinion), Blue Light Hub – Post Project Evaluations (Limited Opinion). Fieldwork for the Asset Management System Process Mapping was currently in progress and the final report for this review would be presented to Members at the next Overview and Audit Committee meeting.

The Internal Audit Manager took Members through the first four final audit reports. The Blue Light Hub – Post Project Evaluation, would be discussed at the end of the meeting in the exempt session.

RESOLVED -

That Members note the final audit reports, Core Financial Controls, HR People Management, Procurement Governance and Compliance and Portfolio Management Office Assurance for FY 2021/22.

OA44 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

The Internal Audit Manager advised that the purpose of this paper was to update Members on the progress of the implementation of audit recommendations made as at 14 February 2022. In total there were 63 recommendations to report on the status of which were classified as follows: implemented -49/63 (78%), inprogress -2/63 (3%) and past due date (In-progress) -12/63 (19%). Internal Audit continued to actively monitor implementation of all outstanding recommendations throughout the year.

A Member asked if one of the 'high priority' risks was an inability to account for some of the equipment or that the equipment had worn out.

The Head of Covid-19 Preparedness and Response advised that as Members could see, the project work following the audit had moved into Q1 of this year, the reason for this was because the scanners the Service purchased to make the process improvement were ordered and arrived October. Due to the Omicron wave, face to face training had to be delayed. The work was ongoing and would be completed in Q1 this year.

RESOLVED -

That the progress on implementation of recommendations be noted.

OA45 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – UPDATE ON THE 2021/22 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

The Internal Audit Manager advised that the purpose of this paper was to update Members on the progress of the annual Internal Audit Plan since the last meeting. Work had progressed according to the 2021/22 plan, and regular discussions have been held with the Director of Finance and Assets to monitor progress. The following 2021/22 internal audits had been finalised, Core Financial Controls (Substantial Opinion), HR People Management (Reasonable Opinion), Procurement Governance and Compliance (Reasonable Opinion), Portfolio Management Office Assurance (Reasonable Opinion) and the Blue Light Hub — Post Project Evaluations (Limited Opinion).

Fieldwork for the Asset Management System Process Mapping was currently in progress. The HR/Payroll Process mapping audit had been deferred to quarter one to allow the new officers to settle into their roles. The final reports would be presented to Members at the next Overview and Audit Committee meeting.

RESOLVED -

That Members note the progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan.

OA46 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

The Internal Audit Manager advised that the paper sets out the Internal Audit Strategy and the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 for the approval of the Committee. Buckinghamshire Council's Business Assurance Team were responsible for implementing the Authority's internal audit standard strategy through delivery of work programmes in accordance with an agreed service level agreement. This report details the internal audit strategy for the year and the proposed internal audit plan for approval. The Authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes taking into account Public Sector Internal Audit standards and guidance. Proper internal audit practices were defined in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017.

The Internal Audit Manager advised Members that this strategy sets out Internal Audit's approach for the delivery of the internal audit plan and how they would approach each order assignment. Internal Audit had a partnership with the Apex Audit Framework hosted by the London Borough of Croydon. This partnership arrangement included an element of a call off contract should it be necessary to outsource specific technical audits such as IT and/or complex contract audits that may be on the plan. The key part of the strategy was to ensure right skill mixes and resource exist to deliver an effective service. For 2022/23 Internal Audit

would aim to continue with the resource allocated for each assignment and oversee the program of work, ensuring work was delivered on time and to the correct quality.

The Internal Audit Manager advised Members that Internal Audit would continue to present the quarterly plans and progress to this Committee and subsequently qualified and experienced auditors would be allocated to each assignment. The draft internal audit plan had been developed in consultation with the Strategic Management Board and consideration of the Authority's Corporate Plan, strategic risk and previous audit activity.

A Member asked what the contingency days were used for.

The Internal Audit Manager advised that contingency was the number of days that were allocated against the audit plan should a new risk area be identified. Internal Audit held regular meetings with the Director of Finance and Assets and through those discussions, would identify any new key risks or emerging areas that might want to be considered for inclusion in the plan during the year. So essentially, a number of days were set aside should they be needed for a particular piece of work.

RESOLVED -

That Members note the Internal Audit Strategy and approve the Annual Internal Audit Plan

OA47 CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporate Planning Manager advised Members that this was the regular report on the status of corporate risks which was presented to every meeting of the Committee. This report reflected any changes and updates made since the last meeting in November 2021. Since then, the risk register had been subject to regular review by officers at the Performance Monitoring and Strategic Management Boards, and also by Lead Members where individual risks fall within their areas of reference. As Members would see, there had been some changes to the probability and impact scores and also, RAG statuses of some of the risks since the last report.

Firstly, in relation to the staff availability risk, 18 new wholetime firefighter recruits had joined the Service on 1 March 2022 and commenced training at the Fire Service College. However, it was decided to maintain the current risk score and red RAG status for this risk in light of the potential impact of London Fire Brigade's current firefighter recruitment campaign.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer advised Members that officers were monitoring the situation very closely around the London Fire Brigade recruitment campaign, as with the London weighting, it was quite an attractive proposition for firefighters to transfer across. The Service was in dialogue with London Fire Brigade to ensure they didn't take everybody all at once, as there was some anecdotal evidence that a number of people had applied. Officers were also in dialogue with the training provider around additional recruit courses later in the year. There was also a Recruitment Board being set up to maintain the recruitment momentum moving forward to cover any gaps that may appear.

The Corporate Planning Manager advised that in relation to the funding and savings risk, Members would see that the risk score and RAG status had been

lowered in light of the Authority's decision in February to raise the Council Tax Precept by £5. However, it had only been reduced from red to the top end of the amber spectrum, as there were still some uncertainties in relation to central government funding and there was, of course, the impact of growing inflationary pressures to consider which were already manifesting themselves in terms of increasing costs for energy, fuel and other consumables.

In relation to the information security risk, viruses and malware remain a very live and potent risk to information, communication and operating systems, and ever more so, in light of current events. The latest advice from GCHQ's National Cyber Security Centre in relation to the potential for Russia to use this medium to hit back at countries that have deployed economic sanctions and other trade related measures in response to its invasion of Ukraine. Officers continued to do everything possible to protect the Authority's systems and Members would see from the risk update that the Authority was now a subscriber to the South-East Employers (SEE) sub-group South-East Government Warning, Advisory and Reporting Point (SEGWARP), which shared knowledge, resources and benchmarking amongst participating IT Security Specialists and IT Managers.

The Corporate Planning Manager advised Members that regarding the Covid resurgence, the Authority had been progressively restoring services that were paused or restricted due to Covid, subject to maintenance of appropriate controls to avoid risk of transmission to the public or amongst its own staff. Given the government's relaxation of the various legal control measures and reducing absence levels, the impact score had been lowered for this risk putting it at the lower end of the amber RAG spectrum.

With regard to the impact in changes to the Firefighter Pension Scheme and the latest position in relation to the McCloud Sargeant pensions risk. Here Members would see that the risk score and RAG status had been reduced from red to amber, given a reduced potential for significant, immediate losses of staff compared with when the remedy was introduced. Though obviously the potential for increased financial liabilities remained.

A Member asked that if some firefighters were leaving to join London Fire Brigade, and the Service was currently recruiting trainees, was monitoring in place to ensure that current firefighters were not overburdened with their daily work rate, with what they can physically do, and how many hours they can physically work.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer advised that there were safeguards in place to ensure that all employees comply with working time regulations, and it was monitored very closely. With the additional funding that was being made available this year, the wholetime establishment figures were being increased, which would mean there would be a lesser need to use the bank system.

A Member asked with the additional funding, what was the optimum number of firefighters in order to ensure both the safety of the staff, but also the safety of its residents.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer advised that the establishment was increased two years ago with an additional ten firefighters. He also advised that all overtime

was voluntary, and the service did not require anybody to do any additional hours, over their contracted hours.

A Member asked what the restriction on recruitment was, was it the number of firefighters that could actually be trained, or a restriction on the budget.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer confirmed it was a mixture of both. In the past it was always around budgets, with not having a longer-term financial settlement, it had always been difficult to plan when to recruit. This year, with the additional funding, the Service could plan its recruitment. A new recruitment board had been established to help drive the recruitment forward.

A Member asked if staff should attend work if they had Covid-19 and was advised that the Authority had followed the government guidance from the beginning of the pandemic, and the advice was not to go into work if they had tested positive with Covid-19.

A Member asked if staff were paid sick pay if they were absent with Covid-19 and was advised that yes they were, and also Covid-19 absence would not contribute to their overall absence monitoring.

RESOLVED -

- 1. That the status on identified corporate risks at Annex C be reviewed and approved.
- 2. That comments be provided to officers for consideration and attention in future updates / reports.

OA48 2020/21 STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

The Corporate Planning Manager advised Members that the requirement to produce an annual Statement of Assurance was introduced by the 2012 Fire and Rescue National Framework for England and re-confirmed most recently in the 2018 Framework.

The format and content of the statement was based on government guidance published in 2013. The guidance had not been updated since then and therefore remains extant.

As Members would see, the Statement covered the period April 2020 – March 2021. The Round 2 HMICFRS inspection and outcome thereof which was reported to the Authority in February would be included in the 2021/22 Statement. However, the outcome of the HMICFRS Covid inspection, which was undertaken in November 2020 and reported to the Committee in March 2021, was included.

Usually, this Statement would be presented to Members at the November meeting of the Committee, however, due to the timing of the completion of the external audit of the financial statements, the Statement of Assurance was the last link in the governance chain and could not be finalised until all the other inputs were completed.

The Statement of Assurance serves as a precis and overview of the outcomes of the more detailed underlying assurance activities ranging across the financial, governance and operational functions and processes and that were reported to the Committee during the course of the 2020/21 financial year.

RESOLVED -

That the 2020/21 Statement of Assurance be approved for signature by the Chairman of the Overview and Audit Committee and the Chief Fire Officer.

OA49 TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE 2021/22 – QUARTER 3

The Principal Accountant presented to Members the Treasury Management Performance report 2021/22 Quarter 3. The accrued interest earned for 2021/22 Quarter 3 was £30k, which was £7.5k higher than the budget set for the same period. The Authority had achieved the budget set for the full financial year 2021/22 by Quarter 3 and was projected to achieve in the region of £38k interest in total by the end of the financial year.

In terms of investments, as at 30 December 2021, the Authority had £16.5m invested in various counterparties including, banks, buildings societies, money market funds and current accounts. It was anticipated by 31 March 2022 funds invested would be in the region of £14m plus the current account balance, approximately totalling £15m. The reason for the reductions in Quarter 4 was due to two deals maturing in February and March 2022 and not being reinvested, to ensure the Authority could meet its short-term expenditure requirements.

As Members would see from the Investment Chart, the Authority had deals maturing on frequent bases, again to ensure it could meet its short term expenditure requirements. In May 2022 the Authority had a PWLB loan due to be repaid. The value of this loan was £620k and cash had been made available to repay this loan when due. The repayment does not impact the revenue budget.

In terms of the next financial year, at the Authority meeting on 16 February 2022, Members approved the Treasury Strategy for 2022/23. This strategy had no significant changes compared to the strategy for this financial year. The Bank of England's Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) had increased the base rate in February 2022 to 0.50%. However, the investment income budget set for 2022/23 would remain at £30k. The next review date on interest base rate was 17 March 2022. The reason for this was because the Authority had a number of investments that were made prior to the last two base rate increases and were maturing during 2022/23. Therefore, the Authority would not see the benefit of the base rate increases for the full year and it was also not prudent to rush into increasing the budget without knowing if the interest rates were going to continue at a stable rate. Any additional income above the set budget would be welcome and if the investment income was sustainable for future years, this would be reflected as part of the next MTFP.

Finally, the cashflow position would continue to be monitored on a regular basis to ensure the Authority could meet the short-term expenditure requirements and be able to maintain adequate liquidity.

A Member asked why a loan was being paid off this year.

The Deputy Director of Finance and Assets advised that the loan was actually coming to its maturity and needed to be paid back.

A Member asked for some clarity on the investment strategy and all the counterparties being low risk, should the Authority look at better performers to invest in although they may be higher risk.

The Principal Accountant advised that with regard to counterparties, the Authority can only invest a maximum of £5m or 30% of its total portfolio with one counterparty. Officers speak to various brokers who give the Authority good rates and information on who was performing better etc. Also, officers meet with treasury advisers on a regular basis to discuss what rates were available and what's happening in the market.

The Principal Accountant advised that when he produced the next report he would add ratings.

RESOLVED -

That the Treasury Management Performance 2021/22 – Quarter 3 report be noted.

OA50 HER MAJESTY'S INSPECTORATE OF CONSTABULARY AND FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES (HMICFRS) – BUCKINGHAMSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE (BFRS) IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE

The Head of Covid-19 Response and Preparedness introduced the revised HMICFRS action plan, following the round two full inspection report which went to the February Authority meeting. The format had been refreshed, to align to the Portfolio Management Office Programme Register. Member's would see that improvement findings had been linked to existing projects and programmes wherever possible and the vast majority of HMI findings did already fit into existing work, or BAU improvements. In future, the progress updates would draw directly from the PMO register which would be more efficient for reporting. The Head of Covid-19 Response and Preparedness advised Members that a dashboard had been included to give a top level view of progress, and Members would see it was already demonstrating progress against many of the findings, with three areas completed and 19 on track. The plan had been split into the three tabs to reflect the inspection pillars of effectiveness, efficiency and people. There was also a column as to whether the finding had been accepted by the Authority. Also included was a good practice tab, which was extracted from the narrative of the report. Officers felt it was important not to lose sight of all the good work that had been done since the round 1 inspection. This idea had been shared with HMICFRS and they were very enthused by this approach.

RESOLVED -

That the Committee note the revised HMICFRS - BFRS improvement plan.

OA51 GRENFELL INFRASTRUCTURE UPDATE (FEBRUARY 2022)

The Head of Covid-19 Preparedness and Response advised Members that following the conclusion of Phase 1 of the Inquiry, there were 46 recommendations made that the Service had incorporated into an improvement plan. This plan was coordinated through the Technical Team and sponsored by the Head of Protection and Assurance. Of the 46 recommendations there were 45 actions identified. To date, the Service had been able to complete 17 and made significant progress on 27. There was now only one recommendation

waiting to be implemented; 'Responsible persons of high-rise residential building be required by law to include up-to-date information about persons with reduced mobility and their associated PEEPs in the premises information box'. The working group had been waiting for results on formal consultation from the Home Office on legislative requirements for PEEPs before progress was made against the recommendation. This was finally received in January and progress against this action would commence shortly.

The Phase 2 part of the Inquiry was currently ongoing. Many of the agreed modules had now concluded with module five and module six (firefighting) closing statements taking place on 24 January 2022. Module 6 (testing & government) was currently underway. It was anticipated that there would be additional recommendations for fire and rescue services to review and action once the Phase 2 report was published.

The Service continued to be proactive in implementing the learning from the Grenfell Tower Inquiry. This had been recognised in the HMICFRS report published in December 2021. The inspectorate team found that the Service had responded positively and proactively to the lessons learned from this tragedy. Highlighting that the Service delivered the high-rise audit programme ahead of schedule and suggested it was well positioned to improve its information about high-rise risk.

RESOLVED -

That the report is noted.

OA52 FORWARD PLAN

The Chairman brought the Forward Plan for future Overview and Audit Committee meetings to the attention of Members.

RESOLVED -

That the Forward Plan be noted.

OA53 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider excluding the public and press representatives from the meeting by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as the Appendix contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of a person (including the Authority); and on these grounds it is considered the need to keep information exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

OA54 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – FINAL AUDIT REPORT – BLUE LIGHT HUB POST EVALUATION PROJECT

The Committee considered the report, details of which were noted in the confidential/exempt minutes.

OA55 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Committee noted that the date of the next Overview and Audit Committee meeting would be held on Wednesday 20 July 2022 at 10.00am.

THE CHAIRMAN CLOSED THE MEETING AT 11:49 AM.